

# **Classification and Rating Committee**

# **Meeting Minutes**

Date	Time	Location	Staff Contact
January 30, 2024	9:30 AM	Microsoft Teams Webinar	Kristen Marsh

1901 Harrison Street, 17th Floor • Oakland, CA 94612 • 415.777.0777 • Fax 415.778.7007 • www.wcirb.com • wcirb@wcirb.com

Released: February 9, 2024

#### Members

National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh PA
Preferred Employers Insurance Company
Security National Insurance Company
State Compensation Insurance Fund
Travelers Property Casualty Company of America
Truck Insurance Exchange
Zenith Insurance Company

### California Department of Insurance

Yvonne Hauscarriague Margaret Hosel

#### **WCIRB**

Kristen Marsh, Chair Bill Mudge Andrea Coleman Sean Cooper Tony Milano Julia Zhang

## Represented By

Ellen Sonkin Christine Glynn Matt Zender Gregory Hanel Tony Panetti Jennifer Fortin Sarah Elston

After a reminder of the antitrust restrictions, the meeting of the Classification and Rating Committee was called to order at 9:30 AM with Ms. Kristen Marsh, Senior Vice President and Chief Legal Officer, presiding.

### **Approval of Minutes**

The Minutes of the meeting held on November 14, 2023 were distributed to the Committee members in advance of the meeting for review. As there were no corrections to the Minutes, a motion was made, seconded and unanimously approved to adopt the Minutes as written.

#### **Notice**

The information in these Minutes was developed by the Workers' Compensation Insurance Rating Bureau of California (WCIRB) for the purpose of assisting the WCIRB Classification and Rating Committee. The WCIRB cannot make any guarantees if this information is used for any other purpose and the WCIRB shall not be liable for any damages, of any kind, whether direct, incidental, punitive or consequential, arising from the use of or reliance upon this information for any other purpose.

Released: February 9, 2024

© 2024 Workers' Compensation Insurance Rating Bureau of California. All rights reserved.

No part of this work may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including, without limitation, photocopying and recording, or by any information storage or retrieval system without the prior written permission of the Workers' Compensation Insurance Rating Bureau of California (WCIRB), unless such copying is expressly permitted in this copyright notice or by federal copyright law. No copyright is claimed in the text of statutes and regulations quoted within this work.

Each WCIRB member company, including any registered third party entities, (Company) is authorized to reproduce any part of this work solely for the following purposes in connection with the transaction of workers' compensation insurance: (1) as necessary in connection with Company's required filings with the California Department of Insurance; (2) to incorporate portions of this work, as necessary, into Company manuals distributed at no charge only to Company employees; and (3) to the extent reasonably necessary for the training of Company personnel. Each Company and all agents and brokers licensed to transact workers' compensation insurance in the state of California are authorized to physically reproduce any part of this work for issuance to a prospective or current policyholder upon request at no charge solely for the purpose of transacting workers' compensation insurance and for no other purpose. This reproduction right does not include the right to make any part of this work available on any website or any form of social media.

Workers' Compensation Insurance Rating Bureau of California, WCIRB, WCIRB California, WCIRB Connect, WCIRB Inquiry, WCIRB CompEssentials, X-Mod Direct, eSCAD, Comprehensive Risk Summary, X-Mods and More, Annual Business Comparative and the WCIRB California logo (WCIRB Marks) are registered trademarks or service marks of the WCIRB. WCIRB Marks may not be displayed or used in any manner without the WCIRB's prior written permission. Any permitted copying of this work must maintain any and all trademarks and/or service marks on all copies.

To seek permission to use any of the WCIRB Marks or any copyrighted material, please contact the WCIRB at customerservice@wcirb.com.

# Item III-A Clerical Telecommuting Employees

The Committee was remined that Classification 8871, *Clerical Telecommuter Employees – N.O.C.*, was established as a new Standard Exception classification applicable to clerical employees who work more than 50% of their time at their home or other office space away from any location of their employer effective January 1, 2021.

The Committee was reminded that a different rate for Classification 8871 was established effective September 1, 2023 using a tempered approach consistent with the WCIRB's standard practice of limiting the relativity change to 25%.

At the meeting, staff provided a summary of the initial unit statistical loss and payroll experience and claims characteristics in Classification 8871 on all 2021 policies and 2022 policies reported as of January 15, 2024. The 2021 and preliminary 2022 data shows that Classification 8871 has a significantly lower loss to payroll ratio than Classification 8810 by 63% mostly driven by lower claim frequency. Staff recommended continuing the tempered approach consistent with the WCIRB's standard practice and limiting the relativity change of Classification 8871 to 25%.

Following a brief discussion, the Committee expressed general consensus with staff's recommended approach.

# Item III-B 2024 Classification Relativities

The Agenda included preliminary classification relativity review sheets to be effective September 1, 2024. The Committee was advised that the review sheets were preliminary in that staff would be continuing the process of validating the underlying data and factors used in the computation of these classification relativities. The Committee was also advised that the methodologies and processes used to compute the September 1, 2024 classification relativities were generally consistent with those used in the computation of the September 1, 2023 relativities. Staff also noted that the preliminary September 1, 2024 classification relativities also reflected the classification changes recommended by the Classification and Rating Committee for inclusion in the September 1, 2024 Regulatory Filing. Staff summarized the overall methodology used to compute the classification relativities and reviewed the classifications requiring special adjustments as noted in the Agenda.

Following the presentation, the consensus of the Committee was that the September 1, 2024 classification relativities should be filed, once finalized, as outlined by staff.

Classification and Rating Committee Meeting Minutes for January 30, 2024

The meeting was adjourned at 10:28 AM.

\* \* \* \* \* \* \* \*

Note to Committee Members: These Minutes, as written, have not been approved. Please refer to the Minutes of the meeting scheduled for May 21, 2024 for approval and/or modification.